Education & Children Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2018-19







CONTENTS

Sec	ction	Item	Page
		Chair's Foreword	2
1		Introduction	3
2		Overview of the Work of the Committee 2018/19	3
	2.1	Number of Meetings	3
	2.2	The Forward Work Programme	3
	2.3	Performance Monitoring / Strategic Issues	4
	2.4	Revenue & Capital Budgets	5
	2.5	Schools	6
	2.6	Children's Services / Safeguarding	11
	2.7	Additional Reports Requested	12
3		Other Scrutiny Activity	12
	3.1	Task and Finish	12
	3.2	Site Visits	13
	3.3	Development Sessions	13
4		Future Work	13
5	•	Support for the Scrutiny Function	14
6		Attendance	15



Chair's Foreword

As the Chair of the Committee I am pleased to present this Annual Report for the Education & Children Scrutiny Committee for the 2018/19 municipal year. The report provides a comprehensive summary of the work undertaken by the Committee during the period May 2018 to April 2019.

I would like to thank the Members of the Committee for their valuable input and dedication over the past year. I would also like to thank the co-opted members of the Committee, who have continued to provide an external, and important viewpoint as to the effectiveness of the Authority's provision.

The Committee developed a comprehensive work programme at the start of the municipal year, and continued to play its part in terms of scrutinising performance and contributing to key Council policies and decisions within the remit of Education and Children Services.

The Committee has scrutinised council performance in a wide range of areas, including, Educational Standards & School Performance, Inclusion and Additional Learning Needs, the Music Service, the Fostering and Adoption Services, School Modernisation, School Funding and Children's services. It also undertook a Task and Finish Group investigation into Early Years Education, Childcare and Play.

However, it is apparent that a significant challenge this year has been the workload of the committee. Over nine meetings, 46 reports and updates were received, which proved challenging in terms of our ability to undertake detailed scrutiny of service areas.

Following training received by the Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS) in March 2019, the committee has agreed to use the CfPS principles going forward. In future, we will aim to limit the number of substantive items on the agenda to two per meeting, which should enable the committee to look in greater detail at the reports presented. The Committee will also consider the rationale and proposed outcomes of future items in greater detail, resulting in more focussed reports.

The Committee are also keen to look at new ways of undertaking our scrutiny role – particularly in the way that we engage with frontline staff. In addition to our regular schools visits, we are looking to pilot new forms of scrutiny such as one day investigative scrutiny and introduce site visits to delivery teams within children's services, to hear directly from the frontline.

I would finally like to thank Democratic Services and Education and Children's Services Officers for their input and for their professionalism in supporting the work of the Committee. I look forward to continuing to work with Members, Co-opted Members and Officers in the year ahead.

Councillor Darren Price
Chair of Education & Children Scrutiny Committee



1. Introduction

Article 6.2 of the Council's Constitution requires all Scrutiny Committees to "prepare an annual report giving an account of the Committees activities over the previous year."

The main aim of the report is to highlight the work that has been undertaken by the Education & Children Scrutiny Committee during 2018/19. The document may also facilitate discussion on other items that could be included within future work programmes.

The Committee is chaired by Councillor Darren Price and is made up of 14 Elected Members and 5 voting Co-opted Members (3 elected parent governor members, 1 representative from the Church in Wales and 1 representative from the Roman Catholic Church). Support is provided by the Democratic Services Unit and other Council officers as and when required.

This report provides an overview of the work of the Education & Children Scrutiny Committee during the 2018/19 municipal year. It gives Members the opportunity to reflect on the achievements during the year and to identify what worked well and where improvements could be made. This analysis is instrumental in developing scrutiny.

2. Overview of the work of the Committee in 2018/19

2.1 Number of Meetings

The Scrutiny Committee held 9 meetings and 1 joint meeting with the Social Care & Health Scrutiny Committee during the 2018/19 municipal year.

2.2 The Forward Work Programme

The Scrutiny Committee develops its own Forward Work Programme (FWP). In June 2018 the Committee considered it's 2018/19 Programme which included standard items such as performance, budget and action plan monitoring reports. Additional reports were also requested by members at that meeting and throughout the year and the Forward Work Programme was amended accordingly. In the main, meeting agendas were consistent with those outlined in the FWP, as confirmed on the 7th June 2018.

The concept and development of the Forward Work Programme and the process for its agreement has allowed each Scrutiny Committee to determine its own agendas. The benefits of such an approach has led to an improved level of debate and input during Scrutiny Committee meetings.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places long term sustainability at the forefront of how public services are designed and delivered and



it places emphasis on public bodies to work in partnership with each other and the public to prevent and tackle problems.

The Education & Children Scrutiny Committee's key responsibilities are:

- Educational Standards & School Performance
- Inclusion & Additional Learning Needs
- Welsh Medium Education
- School Modernisation
- Adult Community Learning
- Youth Services
- Youth Offending
- School meals
- Children's Services including Social Services & Family Support Services

To compliment the work undertaken during formal meetings, the Committee also undertakes other scrutiny functions such as Task and Finish, visits to establishments falling within its remit together with member development sessions.

2.3 Performance Monitoring / Strategic Issues

Performance Monitoring Reports - One of the principal roles of Scrutiny Committees is to monitor the performance of services and functions within its remit. They undertake this work mainly through the consideration of performance monitoring reports and various action plan monitoring reports. The performance monitoring reports provide a balanced picture of performance across the relevant service areas. The Education & Children Scrutiny Committee received the Performance Monitoring Report for the Council's 2018/19 Wellbeing Objectives at its meetings in September 2018 and April 2019. The reports mainly focussed on underperforming indicators.

Carmarthenshire County Council's Draft Annual Report 2017/18 - As part of its performance monitoring role, the Committee received relevant information from the Council's key strategies and plans. In July 2018 the Committee considered the Council's draft Annual Report for 2017/18 which included extracts for its service remit and which had been produced in accordance with the requirements of both the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 and the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales Act 2015).

Education & Children Departmental Draft Business Plan 2019/20-22 – In December the Committee considered the Education & Children Departmental Draft Business Plan 2019/20-2022 which detailed the department's aims and objectives over that timeframe. This provided the Committee with an opportunity to consider and comment upon the priorities outlined for the department for the three year period.

Draft Annual Report of the Statutory Director of Social Services on the effectiveness of Social Care Services in Carmarthenshire 2017/18 - In July 2018, during a joint meeting with the Social Care & Health Scrutiny Committee, members received the Annual Report on the Effectiveness of Social Care Services in Carmarthenshire for 2017/18. Members noted there was a statutory requirement for the Director of Social Services to report annually to Council on the delivery, performance and risks, as well as plans for the improvement of the whole range of Social Services. It was noted that the presentation of this report to scrutiny members was an important element within the development of the final document.

The report was subsequently approved by both the Executive Board and Council at their respective meetings in July and October, 2018.

Corporate Strategy 2018-23 – In April 2019 the Committee considered the elements of the draft new Corporate Strategy 2018-23 relevant to its remit.

Actions & Referrals - During the course of the municipal year several requests for additional items are made by members of the Committee to assist them in discharging their scrutiny role. Actions & Referrals updates are presented to Committee which provide an update on progress in relation to these requests.

2.4 Revenue & Capital Budgets

Budget Monitoring Reports - The Committee received quarterly reports, including by e-mail, on the departmental and corporate revenue and capital budgets. These reports enabled members to monitor the level of spend in each area and the progress made in connection with any capital works and to raise any concerns at the formal meeting, in accordance with Scrutiny Procedure Rules.

Revenue Budget Strategy 2019/20-2021/22 - As well as monitoring the current budget, the Committee was also consulted on the Revenue Budget Strategy 2019/20 to 21/22. The report provided the Committee with the current proposals for the Revenue Budget for 2019/20 together with the indicative figures for the 2020/21 and 2021/2022 financial years.

Outcome:

As part of the widespread consultation undertaken on the Revenue Budget Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22, the Committee considered the budget proposals and a number of comments were raised. Whilst the Committee did not put forward any recommendations to change the budget proposals, it did resolve to relay the following items to the Executive Board



- "- its serious concerns regarding any reduction in the Education Welfare Service, Education and Child Psychology Service and the School Counselling Service and the serious implications of any reduction;
- The request that any additional money identified across the Authority's budget should be vired to the Education Department"

These points were incorporated within the 2019/20 Budget Consultation Report to the Executive Board on the 4th February, 2019 and, subsequently, to Council on the 20th February.

2.5 Schools

- **2.5.1 Modernising Education Programme** In May 2018, as part of the Modernising Education Programme the Committee was consulted on the following school proposals for change:-
 - to increase the capacity of Gorslas Community Primary School from 110 to 210;
 - to provide nursery education at Ysgol Parc y Tywyn by increasing its age range from 4-11 to 3-11

Outcome:

The MEP proposals were endorsed and subsequently considered by the Executive Board on the 4th June 2018 and Council on the 13th June, 2018 where it was resolved to implement the proposals.

- 2.5.2 Task and Finish Review 2015/16 Action Plan Monitoring May 2018 In May, the Committee received a report on the progress made on the recommendations of its Task and Finish Group, established in 2015, to research and review the attainment gap for e-FSM learners.
- 2.5.3 TIC Programme for Schools In May, 2018 the Committee received an update report on the TIC (Transform, Innovate and Change) Programme for schools that included details on a number of work streams developed relating to the service delivery to schools via Service Level Agreements and also to a range of procurement issues where collaborative or corporate arrangements might yield savings to schools. The Committee also received a presentation on progress to date, together with an indication of the potential and actual savings that could be/had been made. The Committee having considered the report requested that an update report be presented to a future meeting.

Outcome:

The Committee received the update report at its December meeting and also requested to be provided with an update copy of the savings achieved to date.



- 2.5.4 ALN Transformation Programme Update (Additional Learning Needs) In June, the Committee received a report and presentation providing an overview of progress and developments in relation to the ALN transformation Programme. It noted that the Welsh Government, on the 12th December 2017, had published The Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Bill, to be supported by regulations and a new ALN Code, to be consulted on during the autumn of 2018 and anticipated to be in place by the end of 2019
- 2.5.5 Music Service Update July 2018 The Committee, in accordance with its decision made in March 2018, received an update report on the operation of the Music Service. The report made reference to the intense financial pressures the service had faced over recent years with a short fall of £169,127 being experienced for 2017/18. It was noted that the service faced many significant challenges nationally, including reductions in the Purchase of Service Level Agreements. Mention had also been made of the possibility of national funding being forthcoming, however, in the meantime the service recognised the importance of identifying ways to address the financial shortfall.

Outcome:

The Committee requested an update report as soon as information was received on national developments. That report was presented to the Committee at it June 2019 meeting.

2.5.6 Approaches to Securing 'Positive Behaviour' in Carmarthenshire Schools —
The Committee received an overview report on the current practice and guidance in place in supporting positive behaviour and anti-bullying within the County's schools. It noted that Carmarthenshire had a strong and lengthy track record of working effectively in that field, drawing on numerous elements of research and good practice nationally and internationally.

Outcome:

The Committee requested a future report to include data measuring the effectiveness of positive behaviour attitudes. The report is included within the Committee's 2019/20 Forward Work Programme.

- **2.5.7** Supporting Progression into Teaching, Leadership Roles and Headship In July 2018, the Committee received a report setting out the current areas of activity, both within Carmarthenshire, and nationally, in support of:-
 - access to and encouragement of teaching as a career and;
 - support for leadership progression into senior roles and headship.



The report detailed the range of opportunities available to the Council's workforce in support of enhanced leadership practice, self-development and achievement. It also referred to the proactive work of ERW, in conjunction with the Welsh Government and the authority on the #Discoverteaching Strategy with the aim of encouraging more people to embrace a rewarding career in teaching.

Outcome:

The Committee requested an update report be presented to a future meeting. The report is scheduled within the Committees 2019/20 Forward Work Programme.

2.5.8 Elective Home Education: Cabinet Secretary's response to correspondence – In July 2018, the Committee received a response to its letter sent to the Welsh Government in March 2018 expressing the Committee's concerns with regard to problems being experienced with home schooled and flexi schooled children.

Outcome:

The Committee noted the Cabinet Secretary's response and accepted an invitation for Su Crowther to present an item on the Committee's letter and the Cabinet Secretary's response to the next Local Authority EHE Stakeholder meeting.

- 2.5.9 Implementing ERW Core Support Visits and Schools Causing Concern In July 2018, the Committee received a presentation providing an overview of the work of the Challenge Advisors and School Improvement Team in undertaking ERW core support visits during the 2017/18 academic year and the progress made with schools causing concern
- 2.5.10 Referral from the Social Care & Health Scrutiny Committee Young Carers and Adult Carer Services In July 2018 the Committee considered a request from the Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee to consider a report on young carers at its September meeting

Outcome:

The Committee received a presentation at its November meeting with members of the Social Care and Health Scrutiny Committee invited to attend.

2.5.11 Provisional Examination and Teacher Assessment Results and Provisional School Attendance Data – In September, the Committee received the provisional examination and teacher assessment results together with the provisional attendance data in September 2018. The verified performance data was reported to the Committee as part of the annual School Performance and Achievement report in January 2019.



2.5.12 Formula Funding for Schools – The Committee received a report on Formula Funding for Schools that provided an overview of current arrangements for the funding of Carmarthenshire's schools in line with Welsh Government practice and procedures.

Outcome:

The Committee received the report and requested a workshop session be arranged on both the Formula Funding for Schools and the £0.5m finding for the School Development Fund. The workshop was held in January 2019. A report on the School Development Fund was also considered at the Committee's January meeting where it was noted that of the 11 applications received for funding totalling £224k, 3 had been approved to a combined value of £116k.

- 2.5.13 Early Voluntary Retirement and Redundancy Budget In November, the Committee, following a request made in March, received an update report on the approach taken, and progress made, in relation to School Redundancy and Early Voluntary Retirement. It was noted that whilst the School Funding (Wales) Regulations 2010 established that expenditure in respect of the dismissal or premature retirement of any person and expenditure in respect of teacher's emoluments were part of the local authority budget, the associated costs were outside the Department's direct control.
- 2.5.14 Carmarthenshire Admissions Forum Review of Admission Round 2018/19 and Admission Arrangements for 2019/20 and 2020/21 In November, the Committee, as part of its FWP agreed in June, received a report providing a review of the Admission Round 2018/19 and Admission Arrangements for 2019/20. The report also incorporated an overview and position statement with regard to school admission arrangements which was presented annually to the Admissions Forum
- 2.5.15 Modernising Education Programme School Organisation Code 2018 The Committee received the School Organisation Code 2018 introduced by the Welsh Government for implementation on the 1st November, 2018 replacing the 2013 Code. The new Code altered the requirements to take forward proposals involving changes to schools, new schools or school closures. The most substantial change was a strengthening of the Code in respect of a presumption against the closure of rural schools.
- **2.5.16 ERW Business Plan 2018/29** the Committee received a presentation on ERW's Business Plan 2018/19 setting out its key objectives, practice and direction of the region's work, aligning with the authority's school



improvement agenda thus ensuring benefits and progress for all of Carmarthenshire's school settings

- **2.5.17 School Performance and Achievement 2017/18** In January, 2019 the Committee received a report detailing the key issues arising from an analysis of quantitative and qualitative data in the performance of schools. In particular, it related to:-
 - a summary of teacher assessments and examination results for pupils in the Foundation Phase, Key Stages 2,3,4 and 5;
 - School improvement outcomes;
 - Developing Values for Skills and Lifelong Learning.
- **2.5.18** MEP Progress Report to December **2018** In January, 2019 the Committee received an update on the Council's Modernising Education Programme up to December 2018.
- 2.5.19 Adult Community Learning In January 2019, the Committee received an overview report on Adult Community Learning and its attention was drawn to funding changes with the Welsh Government Direct Grant being subject to change from September 2019. It was noted whilst it was likely the grant would continue to be awarded to LEA/FE colleges within each local authority, the allocations would be recalculated to ensure a more equitable distribution across Wales.
- **2.5.20 Healthy Schools Initiative** In January 2019 the Committee received a presentation on the Healthy Schools Initiative and noted there were seven schools within Carmarthenshire in the process of, or about to commence, applying for the National Quality Award.
- **2.5.21 Welsh in Education Strategic Plan** In March, 2019 the Committee considered and endorsed the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP), the production and implementation of which is a statutory requirement for the Authority.
- **2.5.22 Draft Equality and Wellbeing Strategy** In March 2019 the Committee considered a report on the Draft Equality and Wellbeing Strategy. As part of its discussion on the report references were made to the aspect of "Children at greater risk of difficulties' and to whether the Pupil Deprivation Grant was used to support children in that category.

Outcomes:

The Committee received the report and requested a further report on the Pupil Deprivation Grant.



2.5.23 Modernising Education Programme – In April 2019 the Committee considered and endorsed proposals to change the nature of provision at Ysgol Rhys Pritchard and also at Ysgol Y Ddwylan, Ysgol Griffith Jones Ysgol Llangynnwr and Ysgol Llys Hywel.

Outcomes:

The Committee endorsed the MEP proposals which were then approved for consultation by the Executive Board on the 13th June, 2019

2.6 Children's Services / Safeguarding

- **2.6.1** National Adoption Service Annual Report the Committee received the 2017/18 National Adoption Service Annual Report detailing the work and performance of the five National Adoption Service Regions
- 2.6.2 Children First The Committee received a presentation on the Children First approach together with a short film on the experiences of children in the Glanymor and Tyisha wards within Carmarthenshire. The approach sought to initiate change at a local level, based on the needs of a specific place, identified by listening to children and young people and the local community. The approach also contributed to mitigating the impact of Adverse Childhood Experiences and exploring new and more effective ways of tackling child poverty.
- 2.6.3 Annual Report on Corporate Parenting Activity In April the Committee considered and received the Annual Report on Corporate Parenting Activity detailing how the Council was meeting its corporate parenting duties under the Social Services and Wellbeing Act, the outcomes for looked after children up to the age of 25 and providing an update on progress against targets set in the Corporate Parenting Strategy.

2.7 Additional Reports Requested

During the course of the year, the Committee requested the additional reports:-

- The additional £0.5m funding for schools;
- WESP language continuum and transfer from primary schools;
- Transform Innovate and Change (TIC);
- Delegated Schools Funding formula (including ALN Funding);
- The school admissions and appeals process;
- Adult Community Learning.



3. Other Scrutiny Activity

3.1 Task and Finish

At the meeting held in March 2018 it was agreed to establish a Task and Finish Group to review Early Years Education, Childcare and Play in Carmarthenshire. The key aims and objectives for the review were detailed in a planning and scoping document endorsed at that meeting along with the membership of the Task and Finish Group, as follows:-

Councillor Darren Price (Chair)
Councillor Kim Broom
Councillor Dot Jones
Councillor Jean Lewis
Councillor Bill Thomas
Councillor Edward Thomas

Outcomes:

The Group's findings were presented to the Committee in April 2019 where it was resolved to forward the report to the Executive Board for approval.

3.2 Site Visits

The programme of school visits commenced in the 2009/10 municipal year and by the end of the October 2015, the Committee had visited all the county's primary, secondary and special schools, along with the 3 integrated family centres. In 2016/17 the Committee began re-visiting schools, linking in with the School Improvement Panel's work programme and the Authority's Modernising Education Programme proposals. It was felt that the visits tended to focus on premises issues and in November 2017 the Committee considered a report entitled Scrutiny School Visits Framework which proposed that the school visits programme's focus be realigned to facilitate broader discussion on aspects chosen as greater priorities e.g. leadership, teaching, learning and outcomes. However, it was not intended to preclude or ignore any elements of premises related issues which may arise and require attention.

The Committee continued with its programme of school visits in 2018/19 with the new emphasis as detailed above and the following 3 schools were visited during the Summer/Autumn Term of 2018:-

- Maes y Gwendraeth
- Ffairfach
- Llanmiloe



3.3 Development/Sessions

The Committee held a School Funding and EVR Workshop in January 2019

The following all-member development sessions/seminars were held during 2018/19, to which Committee members were invited:

- Member workshop with Hywel Dda University Health Board 13th June 2018;
- Rural Affairs Conference 7th September 2018
- Homelessness Seminar 12th September, 2018
- Digital Transformation Seminar 1st October, 2018
- Eiriol Independent Mental Health and Carers Advocacy Seminar 10th October, 2018
- Transform, Innovate and Change Programme Seminar 23rd October, 2018
- Choice Based lettings Seminar 14th November, 2018
- Improve you decision making skills seminar 28th November, 2018
- Seminar with Welsh Water 12th December, 2018
- Drop-in Session Flagship websites and revised LDP (including candidate sites)
 9th January, 2019
- Economic Development Seminar 30th January 2019
- Scrutiny Training / Centre for Public Scrutiny 29th March 2019
- Members drop in digital skills sessions (various dates)
- Mod.gov training sessions for committees (various dates)

In addition, there were several departmental budget seminars held.

4. Future Work

A significant challenge this year has been the workload of the committee; over nine meetings 46 reports and updates were received. In March 2019 Members received training from the Centre for Public Scrutiny, and at the following Forward Work Planning meeting agreed that they would use the CfPS principles going forward. In future the number of items on the agenda will be limited to two per meeting, which should enable the committee to look in greater detail at the reports presented. The Committee will also consider the rationale and proposed outcomes of future items and circulate reports previously presented 'For Information only', outside of the formal committee process.

In previous years the Committee has relied on the content of previous years' Forward Work Programmes (FWP) to shape future content but in light of the training noted at item 4 in this report, Members will undertake a full review of the FWP in 2019/20. The Committee will also look pilot new forms of scrutiny such as one day investigative scrutiny and increase the number of site visits undertaken during the year.



The FWP will continue to be monitored during the course of the year, together with the Executive Board FWP.

5. Support for the Scrutiny Function

Support for Carmarthenshire County Council's Scrutiny function is provided by the Democratic Services Unit, based in the Administration & Law Division of the Chief Executive's Department.

Support for the Scrutiny function includes:

- Formulating, in according with the FWP, and despatching agendas for Scrutiny Committee meetings a minimum of 4 working days prior to the meeting;
- Providing support and constitutional advice to the Scrutiny Committees and to members of those Committees as well as producing minutes of their meetings and ensuring items arising from those meetings are actioned;
- Giving support and advice in relation to the functions of the Council's Scrutiny Committees to executive and non-executive members of the Council and its officers;
- Managing the strategic development of Scrutiny in Carmarthenshire through engaging in national and regional Scrutiny networks and initiatives, supporting the Chairs and Vice-Chairs of Scrutiny Forum and meetings of the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs with the Executive Board;
- Advising and supporting the implementation of the requirements of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 as and when guidance is published;
- Managing the co-ordination and development of the Scrutiny Committees' forward work programmes in conjunction with Scrutiny Committee members;
- Managing and co-ordinating Scrutiny review work, including the administration of scrutiny task and finish groups, assisting in writing reports in conjunction with the groups and assisting in the implementation and monitoring of completed reviews;
- Assisting with the Scrutiny member development programme.

For more information on Scrutiny in Carmarthenshire including forward work programmes, task and finish reports and annual reports, visit the County Council's website at: www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/scrutiny

To contact the Democratic Services Unit, please call 01267 224028 or e-mail scrutiny@carmarthenshire.gov.uk



Attendance

Attendance by members of the Education & Children Scrutiny Committee during the 2018/19 year is shown in the table below. A total of 9 meetings were held between May 2018 and April 2019.

Scrutiny Committee Member	Meetings Attended	%
Cllr. Liam Bowen	6	67%
Cllr. Kim Broom	9	100%
Cllr. Ieuan Wyn Davies	7	78%
Cllr. John Jenkins	6	67%
Cllr. Betsan Jones	8	89%
Cllr. Dot Jones	8	89%
Cllr. Gary Jones	8	89%
Cllr. Jean Lewis	9	100%
Cllr. Shahana Najmi	4	44%
Cllr. Darren Price	8	89%
Cllr. Emlyn Schiavone	9	100%
Cllr. Bill Thomas	8	89%
Cllr. Edward Thomas	6	67%
Cllr. Dorian Williams	8	89%

Parent Governor Representatives	Meetings Attended	%
Mrs Georgina Cornock-Evans (from 01/04/18)	4	44%
Mr James Davies (from 01/04/18)	7	78%
Mrs Melanie Jones (from 01/04/18)	8	89%

Church Representatives	Meetings Attended	%
Mrs Vera Kenny	7	78%
Mrs Jean Voyle Williams (to December 2018)	4	44%
Rev D. Richards (from March 2019)	2	22%

Substitutes	Meetings Attended
Cllr. Sue Allen	2
Cllr. Deryk Cundy	1
Cllr. Tyssul Evans	1
Cllr. Rob James	1
Cllr. Ken LLoyd	1
Cllr. Dorian Phillips	1
Executive Board Member	Meetings Attended
Cllr. Glynog Davies	6

Attendance at the Joint Meeting of the Social Care & Health and Education & Children Scrutiny Committees held on 4^{th} July, 2018 is shown in the table below.

Scrutiny Committee Member	Attended
Cllr. Liam Bowen	0
Cllr. Kim Broom	1
Cllr. Ieuan Wyn Davies	1
Cllr. John Jenkins	1
Cllr. Betsan Jones	1
Cllr. Dot Jones	1
Cllr. Gary Jones	1
Cllr. Jean Lewis	1
Cllr. Shahana Najmi	1
Cllr. Darren Price	1
Cllr. Emlyn Schiavone	1
Cllr. Bill Thomas	1
Cllr. Edward Thomas	1
Cllr. Dorian Williams	1
Parent Governor Representatives	
Mrs Georgina Cornock-Evans (from 01/04/18)	0
Mr James Davies (from 01/04/18)	1
Mrs Melanie Jones (from 01/04/18)	1

Church Representatives	
Mrs Vera Kenny	1
Mrs Jean Voyle Williams (to December 2018)	1
Rev D. Richards (from March 2019)	0

